
 

 

 
 
 

 
COMMUNITY SELECT COMMITTEE 

 
Date: Monday, 8 January 2024 

Time: 6.00pm, 
Location: Council Chamber, Daneshill House, Danestrete, Stevenage 

Contact: Lisa Jerome 01438 242203 
committees@stevenage.gov.uk 

 
 
Members: Councillors:  S Mead (Chair), A Farquharson (Vice-Chair),  
 J Ashley-Wren, F Chowdhury, J Duncan, M Humberstone, W Kerby, 

C McGrath, E Plater and C Veres 
 
________________________________________________________________________ 

AGENDA 
 
PART 1 
 
1.   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   

 
2.   MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING 

 
To approve as a correct record the Minutes of the Community Select Committee 
held on 14 November 2023. 
 
Pages 3 – 6 
 

3.   DRAFT REPORT AND RECOMMENDATIONS OF THE SCRUTINY REVIEW OF 
HOUSING REPAIRS 
 
To consider the draft report and recommendations of the scrutiny review of the 
Housing Repairs service. 
 
Pages 7 – 18 
 

4.   URGENT PART 1 BUSINESS 
 
To consider any Part I business accepted by the Chair as urgent 
 

5.   EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS 
 
To consider the following motions: 
 
1. That under Section 100(A) of the Local Government Act 1972, the press and 
public be excluded from the meeting for the following items of business on the 
ground that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as described 
in paragraphs 1 – 7 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act as amended by Local 
Government (Access to Information) (Variation) Order 2006. 

Public Document Pack



 

 

 
2. That Members consider the reasons for the following reports being in Part II 
and determine whether or not maintaining the exemption from disclosure of the 
information contained therein outweighs the public interest in disclosure.  
 
 

6.   URGENT PART II BUSINESS 
 
To consider any Part II business accepted by the Chair as urgent 
 

 
Agenda Published 28 December 2023 
 



1 

STEVENAGE BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

COMMUNITY SELECT COMMITTEE 
MINUTES 

 
Date: Tuesday, 14 November 2023 

Time: 6.00pm 
Place: Council Chamber, Daneshill House, Danestrete, Stevenage 

 
Present: Councillors: Sarah Mead (Chair), Alex Farquharson (Vice Chair),  

Julie Ashley-Wren, Forhad Chowdhury, John Duncan, Wendy Kerby, 
Conor McGrath, Ellie Plater and Carolina Veres 
 

Start / End 
Time: 

Start Time: 6.00pm 
End Time: 7.00pm 

 
 
1   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 
 Apologies for absence were submitted on behalf of Councillor Mason Humberstone. 

 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 

2   MINUTES - THURSDAY 19 OCTOBER 2023  
 

 It was RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting of the Community Select 
Committee held on 19 October 2023 be approved as a correct record and signed by 
the Chair. 
 

3   PRESENTATION ON THE FINDINGS OF THE RIDGE REVIEW  
 

 The Committee received a presentation from the Assistant Director, Building Safety 
and Housing Property Services on the recently published Ridge Independent 
Housing Speciality Review of Stevenage Housing Services, focussing on the repairs 
element of the Council. 
 
The Assistant Director outlined the approach of the Review which included 25 
consultation meetings with stakeholders and frontline teams, observation of frontline 
service on-site – repairs, Planning and Customer Service Centre teams, alongside a 
review of processes, data and information. 
 
The Committee was advised that the key findings of the review were that: 

• significant improvements had been made to systems and working practices 
since the pandemic but that there was a lack of transparency in the data 
quality;  

• a lack of documented processes; and  

• policy and procedures and improvements were urgently needed to 
communication and customer engagement which was currently the root 
cause of customer complaints 

 

Page 3

Agenda Item 2



2 

The Assistant Director outlined the strengths and achievements of the service 
highlighted in the review including the reduction in service backlog, the new 
scheduling system providing real-time insights, the new booking hub and enhanced 
collaboration and aligning work with repair planners and supervisors to give clear 
accountabilities of the service 
 
The Committee noted a number of opportunities from the review including engaging 
with customers to shape the new service model and the use of technology to 
become a digital business. 
 
The key recommendations from the review in relation to the Service; people; 
systems and technology and data and information were outlined to Members.  The 
existing data and information currently held would be used in a more intelligent 
fashion. 
 
Members raised a number of concerns and questions which were responded to by 
the Assistant Director and the Portfolio Holder for Housing and Housing 
Development: 
 

• The stakeholders involved in the consultation included all front line teams who 
had an interface with the repairs service; 

• In relation to the booking hub, Members were advised that this was currently 
under development but that it was envisaged that a customer could report a 
repair and make an appointment at the same time.  Members were concerned 
that this was likely to cause issues with customers mis-diagnosing an issue 
and the wrong operatives being sent out to a property.  Officers assured 
Members that a team of planners and schedulers that would review the report 
to consider the most appropriate operative to be sent out.  It was agreed that 
this issue should be re-considered by the Committee once the booking hub 
was operational; 

• Several Members of the Committee had been on site visits with the Repairs 
team and concern was expressed that both jobs attended had failed due to 
the inadequacy of communication between departments; 

• A Member advised that in order for the system to be successful, it was 
essential that the Schedule of Rates for the works be accurate and reflect the 
different tasks/repairs regarding the time allocated to the Direct Labour 
organisation’s trades person; 

• Members were concerned that the reference to upskilling operatives to take 
on additional tasks would result in less expertise in one trade.  The Assistant 
Director gave assurances that operatives would still be skilled in a primary 
trade but would be able to take associated simple/lower level jobs if they were 
needed.  She advised that this was a common practice within the repairs 
sector. 

 
The Assistant Director advised the Committee that following the review, an all-
encompassing improvement plan would be established and involve all stakeholders 
including customers.  There would hopefully be some quick wins as well as realistic 
milestones and target dates for those improvements to ensure they were deliverable 
within available resources.  
 

Page 4



3 

It was RESOLVED that the update be noted. 
 
 

4   INTERVIEW WITH THE EXECUTIVE PORTFOLIO HOLDER FOR HOUSING & 
HOUSING DEVELOPMENT  
 

 The Chair welcomed Councillor Jeannette Thomas, Executive Portfolio Holder for 
Housing and Housing Development to the meeting. 
 
Councillor Thomas advised that she was aware that the majority of Councillor 
contact with tenants was housing repair related.  She advised the Committee that 
the Repairs and the Investment Teams were now working together and that the 
situation with repairs had improved.  Any new reports would be dealt with in good 
time and historical repairs were being worked through by the Team. 
 
Councillor Thomas agreed with Members and the Assistant Director that 
communication with tenants was key to making the new way of working a success.  
Even if there was no progress, tenants must be kept informed with the situation in 
regard to their repair. 
 
In response to a question, Councillor Thomas advised that the detail of the issue in 
the majority of reports from tenants was identified correctly but the diagnosis of the 
work required to an issue was undertaken by the repair’s operatives. 
 
In response to a further question from the Chair regarding what happened to the 
cases which were initially being dealt with by the repair team but were deemed not 
to be a repair, when these cases appeared to close, Councillor Thomas responded 
by saying that she did not know what the referral route to the investment team is in 
those cases. The Chair asked the Portfolio holder to clarify. 
 
The Chair stated that the review had established that there was a difference 
between what constituted a repair and what was a replace. 
 
The Chair thanked Councillor Thomas for her contribution to the meeting. 
 
 

5   RESPONSE TO QUESTION MEMBERS RAISED REGARDING RE-CHARGING 
TENANTS FOR DAMAGED PROPERTIES  
 

 The Committee received a report from the Scrutiny Officer outlining the response to 
information requested by Members regarding re-chargable costs to tenants for 
damage to properties. 
 
Members agreed that early inspections of properties were important to ensure there 
were no delays for any potential re-charges.  Members were pleased to hear that it 
was planned to increase regular tenancy audits which were key to avoid any issues. 
 
The Assistant Director gave reassurances to the Committee that the procedure was 
due for a review early in the new Year. 
 

Page 5



4 

It was RESOLVED that the update be noted. 
 

6   URGENT PART 1 BUSINESS  
 

 None. 
 

7   EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS  
 

 Not required. 
 

8   .URGENT PART II BUSINESS  
 

 None. 
 

CHAIR 

Page 6



 
  PART I 

Release to Press  

Item no: 

D:\Moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\0\7\1\AI00016170\$qmjkt1t4.docx 

Meeting: COMMUNITY SELECT COMMITTEE  

Portfolio Area: Housing & Housing Development  

Date: 8 JANUARY 2024  

DRAFT REPORT AND RECOMMNEDATIONS OF THE SCRUTINY REVIEW OF 
HOUSING REPAIRS 
 
Author – Stephen Weaver    Ext No.2332 
Lead Officer – Denise Lewis   Ext No. 
Contact Officer – Stephen Weaver  Ext No.2332 

Contributors – Councillor Sarah Mead, Chair of Community Select Committee; 
Councillor Alex Farquharson, Vice-Chair of Community Select Committee; Assistant 
Director, Denise Lewis 

1 PURPOSE 

1.1 To consider the draft report and recommendations of the Community Select 
Committee Scrutiny, looking at the performance of Housing Repairs Service.   

2 BACKGROUND & SCRUTINY ISSUE IDENTIFIED  

2.1 The issue of scrutinising the performance of the Housing Repairs service 
was agreed by the Select Committee as a scrutiny review item along with 
other scrutiny items when it met on 9 March 2023, and this choice was 
confirmed by the Committee when it reconsidered their work programme on 
27June 2023. 
 

2.2 Scope and Focus of the review 
 

2.2.1 The scope for the review was agreed when the Committee met on 
Wednesday 26 July 2023. Community Select Committee Wed 26 July 2023 - 

Page 7

Agenda Item 3

https://democracy.stevenage.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=151&MId=5613&Ver=4


Repairs Scoping Document It was agreed that the scope should include a 
focus on: 

• Look at the current repairs standards – consider the policy on ‘emergency’, 
‘urgent’ and ‘routine’ repair works, and the scope of works currently 
undertaken, (e.g. fencing and other renewals) which Housing consultant 
Ridge were also reviewing for the Council. 

• Contractor focus - Provide a presentation from the SBC housing contractor 
focusing on some key stats including the breakdown on the volumes of 
works e.g., emergency, urgent etc, % of first-time fix, staffing overview, some 
examples of what’s working well and where the challenges are. 

• Client focus - Provide insight from the Council’s housing consultant with an 
overview from the ‘client’ in terms of the work of Ridge, how the refreshed 
housing asset management strategy will hopefully increase the proactive / 
planned maintenance programmes and look at the need to review the 
Stevenage Standard i.e., the fencing policy. 

• Look at the current process officers use regarding receiving, logging and 
carry out repairs to see if it is fit for purpose as Members are “concerned that 
the current processes do not appear to be straightforward or be running 
well”. 

• Identify ways to improve the current service including, where possible, 
streamlining the process to have one point of contact for tenants from the 
point they register a repair request this would help to co-ordinate all repairs 
in the property, especially important in cases where there are multiple repairs 
needed in the same property. 

• Improve Communications (The context is to avoid cases where “the current 
process requires too many steps with too many operatives and 
subcontractors to get a repair resolved”) Members are concerned that 
“Tenants are being told a repair will happen, then it doesn't and there doesn't 
appear to be any process for letting the tenant know what is going on and 
why,” “Communication about repairs is poor or non-existent leading to anger 
and frustration for tenants. 

• Early identification of cases that could be described as in the “too difficult 
box” – (The context is a Member quoted a case where “there has been a 
flooding issue that has been going on for multiple years, and it appears that 
no one can get to the root cause of the problem, so it falls into the ‘too 
difficult box’”. 

• Make better use of technology – (For instance, tenants can send a photo of 
the problem, such as a blown down fence, that perhaps doesn’t need an 
officer to inspect before materials are ordered and repair booked etc. if the 
photo shows the extent of the repair). 
 

2.3 Process of the review 
 
2.3.1  The Committee met on 3 occasions in total with 3 formal Committee 

meetings to undertake the review as follows: On 26 July 2023, 19 October 
2023 and 14 November 2023, and held 1 site visits days on 29 August 2023 
to visit the Repairs Team to view the repairs booking system, as part of this 

Page 8

https://democracy.stevenage.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=151&MId=5613&Ver=4


visit 2 CSC Members accompanied repair operatives on visits to tenants’ 
properties. 

 
2.3.2 The Committee interviewed the following witnesses:  
 

• Housing Repairs Service Delivery Manager, Dean Stevens 

• Assistant Director, Denise Lewis 

• Executive Portfolio Holder for Housing & Housing Development, Cllr 
Jeannette Thomas 

3 THE COMMITTEES FINDINGS 

3.1 Conclusions of the Community Select Committee re scrutiny of the 
Housing Repairs Service 

 
3.1.1 Following the formal meetings of the Committee 26 July 2023, 19 October 

2023 and 14 November 2023, various observations were made by Members 
and are detailed below, which have led to the recommendations in the report 
at section 4. 

 
3.1.2 The review found that there were many challenges that need to be 

addressed to provide a fit for purpose repairs service. However, before 
focusing on the challenges the recent improvements that had been made 
needed to be recorded, these included the reduction in the service backlog 
since the Covid pandemic; the new scheduling system providing real-time 
insights; the new booking hub and enhanced collaboration and aligning work 
with repair planners and supervisors to give clear accountabilities of the 
service. 

 
3.2 Quantifying the current repairs standard. 
 
3.2.1 The review looked at quantifying the current repairs standards looking at the 

policy on ‘emergency’, ‘urgent’ and ‘routine’ repair works, and the scope of 
works currently undertaken, (e.g., fencing, and other renewals) which 
Housing consultant Ridge were also reviewing for the Council.  

 
3.2.2 Officer response: There is no current policy or standard and therefore needs 

to be picked up as part of the suite of policy, procedures and processes we 
need to put in place as part of the Repairs service improvement plan. 

 
3.3 Contractor focus 
 
3.3.1 The review received a presentation from the SBC housing contractor 

focusing on some key stats including the breakdown on the volumes of 
works e.g., emergency, urgent etc., percentage of first-time fix, staffing 
overview, some examples of what’s working well and where the challenges 
are. 

 
 
 

Page 9



3.3.2 Officer response: 
 

• Housing Repairs look after circa 8,500 tenanted properties. 

• During 2022/23 carried out over 2,000 emergency repairs, nearly 
5,000 urgent repairs and over 14,000 routine repairs. 

• 95% of repairs are fixed first time. 
 
3.4 Client focus 

 
3.4.1 The review sought to provide insight from the Council’s housing consultant 

with an overview from the ‘client’ in terms of the work of Ridge, how the 
refreshed housing asset management strategy will hopefully increase the 
proactive / planned maintenance programmes and look at the need to review 
the Stevenage Standard i.e., the fencing policy. 

 
3.4.2 Officer response: A summary of the findings from the Ridge review was 

shared with CSC Members at the Committee’s meeting on 14th November, 
much of what Members heard echoed the findings of their own review with 
challenges around previously working in silos leading to poor communication 
between teams (separate Repairs and Investment teams) and with tenants, a 
lack of written procedures, and a need to improve the use of data. 

 
3.5 Current process for logging repairs 

 
3.5.1 During the site visit to the repairs team, Members looked at the current 

process officers use regarding receiving, logging and carrying out repairs to 
see if it is fit for purpose as Members are “concerned that the current 
processes do not appear to be straightforward or be running well”. 

 
3.5.2 Officer response: During the site visit on 29 08 23, Members saw the current 

IT software system for logging and allocating repair works. This system, 
coupled with a proactive workforce, enabled jobs to be logged and allocated 
in a logical way, so this has largely been dealt with now, but was dependent 
on a skilled team of officers to monitor the process interpreting the repairs 
requests to make sure the correct trades people are allocated the work. 
Therefore, the proposed new customer self-serve portal (NEC) for repairs 
would in the future need to be supported by accurate schedule of rates for 
the time and material required to complete the repair. In addition, the two 
instances where Members attended tenants’ homes as part of their site 
visits, the trades people were unable to complete the repair due to the wrong 
information about it being communicated/logged, so there appears to be 
definite room for improvement. 

 
3.6 Streamlining the process to have single point of contact. 

 

3.6.1 Members had recommended that officers consider identifying ways to 
improve the current service including, where possible, streamlining the 
process to have one point of contact for tenants from the point they register a 
repair request this would help to co-ordinate all repairs in the property, 

Page 10



especially important in cases where there are multiple repairs needed in the 
same property. 

 
3.6.2 Officer response: A single point of contact for tenants sounds attractive but 

could make matters worse. Within the Repairs service this isn’t practicable, 
it’s better that all staff have access to up-to-date information on repairs, so 
that anyone can deal with any queries. Not one person in the service 
manages the whole process. Initial reports come in via CSC (or increasingly 
will be on-line). Officers agree communications with customers’ (and 
internally) needs to improve and this is a theme emerging from the Ridge 
review so improvements will need to have a heavy focus on this area. 
 

3.7 Improve Communications 
 
3.7.1 Improve Communications There were some cases where in the view of 

Members “the current process requires too many steps with too many 
operatives and subcontractors to get a repair resolved” Members were 
concerned that “Tenants are being told a repair will happen, then it doesn't 
and there doesn't appear to be any process for letting the tenant know what 
is going on and why,” and “Communication about repairs is poor or non-
existent leading to anger and frustration for tenants” 

 
3.7.2 Officer response: As per other responses, communications (internal and 

external) will be a theme in the improvement plan – some of this is about 
policies, processes /procedures which will ensure clarity on roles and 
responsibilities, including communication with customers, but some of it is 
about culture and there will be an element of performance management in 
there too. 

 
3.7.3 It was clear to the Committee from the interview with the Executive Portfolio 

Holder for Housing and Housing Development, that the Executive Member 
was very unhappy with the way some officers were currently not 
communicating effectively to hand over work to the relevant teams, citing a 
persistent cultural problem with some officers not taking initiative or not 
responding to emails or telephone messages. 

 
3.8 Early indication of difficult cases 
 
3.8.1 Early identification of cases that could be described as in the “too difficult 

box” – (The context is a Member quoted a case where “there has been a 
flooding issue that has been going on for multiple years, and it appears that 
no one can get to the root cause of the problem, so it falls into the ‘too 
difficult box’” 

 
3.8.2 Officer response: Again, if we have good processes and procedures this will 

pick up complex cases/issues. Sometimes these arise because it is not clear 
if these are ‘repairs’ or ‘major works’ and responsibility can be blurred at 
present because there isn’t currently a process for how teams manage these 
between them. Also, within Housing there is a need to build relationships 
between teams to support better collaborative working. 

Page 11



 
 
 
3.9 Make better use of technology. 
 
3.9.1 Members asked officers to look at making better use of technology, an 

example provided was encouraging tenants to send a photo of the problem, 
such as a blown down fence, that perhaps doesn’t need an officer to inspect 
before materials are ordered and repair booked etc. if the photo shows the 
extent of the repair. 

 
3.9.2 Officer response: We already have the ability for tenants to send in photos to 

help with repairs diagnosis – Officers could look at how much this is used 
already in CSC and if we can promote this more with tenants. But again, 
need to manage expectations of tenants as it will not avoid inspections in all 
cases. 

 
The Ridge review suggests we have appropriate technology to support the 
service but need to make better use of this, so again that will be a theme in 
the improvement plan. Examples: 

 

• Using data on types of repairs to understand what drives demand on 
service and how we can reduce this through cyclical and planned works. 

• Investigate remote diagnostic tools such as Switchee and Aico but more 
likely to be viable for a targeted % of stock as installation across the stock 
would take a long time and be very expensive in terms of both initial 
capital outlay and ongoing revenue requirements in terms of data 
monitoring and reporting but could look at business case but not until 
2024/25 at earliest given other service priorities. 

 
3.10  Climate Implications regarding Housing Repairs & Scheduled 

Replacement Programmes 
 

3.10.1 Head of Climate Change Input: Housing Repair services have a significant 
role in decarbonising the Council's services. Firstly, in terms of direct 
emissions, the service's use of fuel must be monitored and aimed at 
reducing. The vehicle fleet renewal could be critical. SBC is currently 
analysing the switch from the current diesel used in our fleet to HVO 
(Hydrotreated Vegetable Oil), a biowaste-based fuel, which would reduce our 
fleet emissions by up to 90%. This is a temporary measure that must be 
complemented with the transition, in the short-term, from the current ICE 
vehicles to EVs. Based on the last available information we can observe that 
the housing fleet includes primarily mini and panel vans and a few caged 
tippers, travelling about 239,000 miles per year, using 32,500 litres of diesel 
and emitting 87.9 tonnes of CO2, which is about 11% of our total fleet-related 
emissions. 

 
3.10.2 If fuel is used in other machinery (non-road), this should also be monitored 

and electrical or energy efficient alternatives should be explored, subject to 
technological availability and costs.  

Page 12



 
3.10.3 Digitalising the diagnosis, creating platforms so that tenants can report 

problems and avoid in-person inspections would help to avoid business 
travel. 

 
3.10.4 The successful outcomes from Housing Repairs services also have a 

relevant impact on the reduction of emissions in Stevenage, e.g., avoiding 
gas leakages or improving the energy efficiency.  

 
3.10.5 Indirect emissions from the service must also be considered, particularly 

those related to carbon embodied in the materials, machinery and tools that 
are utilised. As the service is one of the most relevant in terms of the Council 
procurement, the sustainable and responsible procurement actions 
implemented are of interest. Issues such as increasing the lifespan of the 
materials, improving the energy efficiency and durability of the machinery or 
tools, and avoiding unnecessary packaging, as well as promoting local 
sourcing can be addressed.  

 
3.10.6 Finally, it is also relevant to supervise the end of life of the products used by 

the service, in particular the waste management and the levels of repairing, 
reusing, and recycling that allow it to reduce the carbon footprint. 

4 RECOMMENDATIONS   

4.1 That the Community Select Committee agrees the conclusions of the report 
as well as the recommendations below and that these will be presented to 
the Executive Portfolio Holder for Housing & Housing Development and that 
a response be provided from these and any other named officers and 
partners within two months of the publishing of this report. 

 
4.2 Recommendation 1- Development of a suite of Policies and Procedures 

for Housing Property Services: 
 
4.2.1 That the Assistant Director Building Safety and Housing Property Services 

be recommended to develop a suite of policies, procedures and processes 
so that issues like quantifying the level of a repair into an agreed standard 
can be established which should help the authority manage repairs in a more 
planned way. 

 
Reason: 
There is no current repairs policy or standards and therefore needs to be 
picked up as part of the suite of policy, procedures and processes we need 
to put in place as part of the Repairs service improvement plan. The need for 
this recommendation is also referenced at paragraphs 3.5 (current process 
for logging repairs) and 3.8 (flagging and dealing with complex cases) 

 
 
 
 

Page 13



4.3 Recommendation 2 – Improved Communication both internal and 
external: 

 
4.3.1 That (i) the Assistant Director Building Safety and Housing Property Services 

be recommended to improve communication both internal and external, 
ensuring that all team members communicate effectively with tenants and 
with colleagues to get repairs resolved quickly and efficiently; and (ii) the 
repairs service improve communications with tenants via direct engagement, 
social media and newsletters so that tenants are aware of the implications of 
missing appointments. When there are repeated failures to keep 
appointments there should be a charge made against the tenants rent 
account. 

 
 Reason: 

(i) As per other review findings, communications (internal and external) 
will be a theme in the Repairs improvement plan – some of this is 
about policies, processes /procedures which will ensure clarity on 
roles and responsibilities, including communication with customers, 
but some of it is about culture and there will be an element of 
performance management in there too, with Manager’s ensuring that 
all teams communicate properly so that the repair task in hand is 
resolved as quickly and efficiently as possible within agreed response 
times and agreed solutions. The session with the Executive Portfolio 
Holder for Housing and Housing Development made it clear that there 
needs to be a concerted effort to improve internal and external officer 
communications. 

(ii) During the site visit to the repairs team, it was apparent that it is 
commonplace for appointments not to be kept by tenants. The 
reason’s stated for why appointments are not kept were as follows: 
-The correct telephone number was not provided (a correct telephone 
number needs to be recorded with the original request) 
-The tenant not responding. 

 
4.4 Recommendation 3 – Make better use of technology: 
 
4.4.1 That officers make a better use of technology to enhance the service this 

could include (i) encouraging tenants to send in digital photos and videos of 
the repair; (ii) using data on in year repairs against previous years to see 
trends and to profile the type of work that would be expected in different 
age/style housing stock; (iii) consider as a future development using remote 
diagnostic tools that are available in the housing sector or the development 
of an in-house housing App that tenants could use to report on repairs and 
general stock condition. 
 

Reason: 
As detailed at paragraph 3.9 in the report Members have found that 
technology is already being used but there were many opportunities for the 
new technology to be embraced which was also a component of the 
independent Ridge Repairs review, which has recommended that electronic 
systems such as Switchee and Aico (remote diagnostic tools) be invested in. 

Page 14



 
4.5 Recommendation 4 – Work with the Customer Service Centre regarding 

training: 
 

4.5.1 That the Assistant Director Building Safety and Housing Property Services (i) 
be invited to work with the Customer Services Centre (CSC) to improve 
training to help them clearly identify if the work is a repair or planned 
investment and (ii) develop a checklist of questions for use with CSC Officers 
to ask the tenants to ascertain as much information to accompany the 
original request. 
 
Reason: 
Following the site visit to the Repairs Team it was apparent to Members that 
the wrong information was being captured by the Customer Services Centre 
staff which caused confusion and delay with the repairs team. 

 
4.6  Recommendation 5 – Review of the booking system: 
 
4.6.1 That the scheduling system (DRS) be reviewed by the repairs team after the 

original booking and prior to sending out repairs operatives to ensure 
everything is in place to avoid the need for a future visit. 

  
 Reason: 

 As above, this was evidenced by Members during their site visit to the 
repairs team. 

 
4.7 Recommendation 6 – Streamline working between Investment and 

Repairs: 
  
4.7.1 Notwithstanding that the Investment and Repairs teams are now within the 

same business unit, there is still a need for the investment and repairs teams 
to have closer collaboration between them with a standardised process 
whereby the repair’s team are not relied upon to attend a job only to discover 
it is an investment team consideration not a repair. When this is the case, 
communication to be provided to the tenant to avoid the case appearing to 
fall into a ‘black hole’. If a case is passed from repairs to investment - repairs 
closes the case which when reported causes confusion and frustration. 
 

 
 Reason: 

 As observed by Members during the evidence gathering sessions, and 
based on their experience of ward cases, there are currently incidents of 
poor communication from time to time amongst officers that need to be 
improved to provide a more seamless service to improve the customer 
experience.  

 
 
 
 

Page 15



4.8 Recommendation 7 – Development of an audit trail via a tracker for 
each repair /enquiry: 

 
4.8.1 That the process and journey of each tenant’s request for a repair (whether it 

be defined as a repair or housing investment) be able to be traced and the 
initial request is the start of the timeline for the resident.  

 
Reason: 
Members were of the view that a tracker should be established for every type 
of repair request to show tenants where they are in their customer journey 
and provide an accurate timeline for a repair with various milestones 
recorded throughout. 

 
4.9 Recommendation 8 – Development of Customer Self-serve App: 
 
4.9.1 That the booking hub that is currently under development be brought back to 

Community Select Committee Members to view to establish the efficacy of 
the booking system. While there are improvements in use of technology, it 
will remain the case that there will be residents who cannot access it and 
officers will need to resume a client facing approach. 
 

 Reason: 
In relation to the booking hub, Members were advised that this was currently 
under development but that it was envisaged that a customer could report a 
repair and make an appointment at the same time.  Members were 
concerned that this was likely to cause issues with customers mis-
diagnosing an issue and the wrong operatives being sent out to a property.  
Officers assured Members that the schedulers would review the reported 
repairs to consider the most appropriate operative to be sent out.  It was 
agreed that this issue should be re-considered by the Committee once the 
booking hub was operational. 

 
4.10 Recommendation 9 – Collecting feedback from all stakeholders 
 
4.10.1 To collect feedback on performance from all stakeholders. 
 
 Reason: 

It was evident that tenants, Members and the Portfolio Holder are all unclear 
on the existing processes. In order to evaluate any new policy, feedback 
should be collected to establish its success. The aim will be clear 
understanding of the journey of an individual case and the decisions 
attached to it.  

 
5.1 Legal Implications 

5.1.1 There are no direct legal implications for this report.  
 
5.2 Equalities Implications 
 

Page 16



5.2.1 The main group who are affected by seeking Housing repairs are the tenants 
who are predominantly from lower income households or who are in receipt 
of benefits and are otherwise spread across the other 9 recognised E&D 
protected characteristic groups. Having an accessible service for disabled 
and low-income households is therefore very important. If tenants are left 
with a property that is in need of repair and the matter takes in some cases 
many weeks to resolve this puts them at a disadvantage as they are relying 
on a good service from the Council as their Landlord.  

 
5.3 Climate Change Implications 
 
5.3.1 The climate change implications are detailed at paragraph 3.10. 
 
  

 APPENDICES: 
None 

     
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS – Notes of Site Visit to Housing Repairs Team 29 
August 2023.pdf (stevenage.gov.uk) 
 

Page 17

https://democracy.stevenage.gov.uk/documents/s35203/Notes%20of%20Site%20Visit%20to%20Housing%20Repairs%20Team%2029%20August%202023.pdf
https://democracy.stevenage.gov.uk/documents/s35203/Notes%20of%20Site%20Visit%20to%20Housing%20Repairs%20Team%2029%20August%202023.pdf


This page is intentionally left blank

Page 18


	Agenda
	2 MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING
	3 DRAFT REPORT AND RECOMMENDATIONS OF THE SCRUTINY REVIEW OF HOUSING REPAIRS

